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SUMMARY of CHANGE

AR 27-10
Military Justice

This expedite revision, dated 11 May 2016--

o Requires commanders to annotate and file the record of nonjudicial punishment
in the performance folder of the Soldier’s official military personnel file,
if issued for specified sex-related offenses (para 3-6Db).

o Authorizes field grade officers in command of a battalion or squadron to
convene summary courts-martial, pursuant to Article 24 (a) (4), Uniform Code of
Military Justice (para 5-2a (1) (e)) .

o Updates U.S. obligations regarding consular notification under the Vienna
Convention on Consular Relations and bilateral agreements between the United
States and other nations regarding consular notification (para 5-14).

o Incorporates Army Directive 2014-19, Implementation of Section 1744 of the
National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2014-Review of Decisions
not to Refer Charges of Certain Sex-Related Offenses for Trial by Courts-

Martial (hereby superseded) (para 5-19c¢).

o Sets forth the right of qualifying victims of sexual assault to be provided a
copy of the record of trial (para 5-45).

o Requires specific notification and forwarding of records of trial in cases in
which the death penalty has been adjudged (para 5-46c).

o Establishes rules concerning the release of information pertaining to the
administration of military justice and accused persons (para 5-50) .

o Establishes processing requirements for disclosure of exculpatory evidence
when discovered post-trial (para 5-51).

o Updates requirements and responsibilities of military judges (para 7-1).

o Allows the Chief, Trial Judge (absent conflicts) to detail a military judge to
capital cases (para 7-6b).

o Prohibits military magistrates from reviewing the determination of enemy
belligerents under the law of armed conflict (para 8-3).

o Updates procedures for organizing and grouping courts-martial orders and
promulgating orders (para 11-5a(2)).

o Updates distribution and addresses for forwarding special court-martial
cases (para 11-7b).

o Establishes Military Justice Online reporting requirements (para 14-3).



Implements Uniform Code of Military Justice, Article 6b rights, as provided
for in 10 USC 806b (para 17-10).

Establishes the right of victims of sexual assault to have the trial counsel,
special victim counsel, or victim advocate present during defense requested

interviews (para 17-10a(11) (b)) .

Provides for consideration of a victim’s jurisdictional preference for
disposition of sex-related offenses (para 17-10a(ll) (c)) .

Establishes procedures for victim notifications (paras 17-17c and d).
Revises complaints under Article 138 (chap 19).

Defines “military sexual offenders” and “sexually violent offenses” and
establishes policy for reporting sex-related offenses (para 24-2).

Adds policy and procedures on capital litigation (chap 28).
Updates conduct of nonjudicial punishment proceedings; attorney-client

guidelines; and military justice area support responsibilities (apps B, C,
and E, respectively).
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History. This publication is an expedite
revision. The portions affected by this
expedite revision are listed in the summary
of change.

Summary. This regulation implements,
in part, the Department of Defense Reor-
ganization Act; changes to the Manual for
Courts-Martial, United States, 2005; De-
partment of Defense Directive 5525.7 (de-
lineating the areas of responsibility for
investigating and prosecuting offenses
over which the Department of Defense
and Department of Justice have concur-
rent jurisdiction); Public Law 97-291
(Victim and Witness Protection Act of
1982); Public Law 98473 (Victims of
Crime Act of 1984); Public Law 101-647
(Victims' Rights and Restitution Act of
1990); Public Law 102-484 (National De-
fense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year
1993); Public Law 103-160 (National De-
fense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year
1994); Public Law 106-523 (Military Ex-
traterritorial Jurisdiction Act of 2000);
Public Law 109-163 (National Defense
Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2006);
Public Law 109-364 (National Defense
Authorization Act for Fisca Year 2007);

Department of Defense Instruction 1325.7
(notifying States regarding sexualy vio-
lent offenses and offenses against minors);
Department of Defense Directive 1030.1
(victim and witness assistance) and De-
partment of Defense Directive 5525.11
(implementing policies and procedures for
the Military Extraterritorial Jurisdiction
Act); and includes changes on matters of
policy and procedure pertaining to the ad-
ministration of military justice within the
Army.

Applicability. This regulation applies to
the Active Army, the Army National
Guard/Army National Guard of the United
States, and the U.S. Army Reserve, unless
otherwise stated. It also applies to Depart-
ment of the Army civilians who are in-
volved in any matter that falls under the
responsibility and authority of The Judge
Advocate General, regardless of whether
such person is a member of the Judge
Advocate Legal Service. This publication
is applicable during mobilization.

Proponent and exception authority.
The proponent of this regulation is The
Judge Advocate General of the Army. The
proponent has the authority to approve ex-
ceptions or waivers to this regulation that
are consistent with controlling law and
regulations. The proponent may delegate
this approval authority, in writing, to a
division chief within the proponent
agency or its direct reporting unit or field
operating agency, in the grade of colonel
or the civilian equivalent. Activities may
request a waiver to this regulation by pro-
viding justification that includes a full
analysis of the expected benefits and must
include a formal review by the activity's
senior legal officer. All waiver requests
will be endorsed by the commander or
senior leader of the requesting activity

and forwarded through their higher head-
quarters to the policy proponent. Refer to
AR 25-30 for specific guidance.

Army internal control process. This
regulation contains interna control provi-
sions and provides an internal control
evaluation for use in evaluating key inter-
nal controls (see appendix G).

Supplementation. Supplementation of
this regulation and establishment of com-
mand and local forms are prohibited with-
out prior approva from the Office of The
Judge Advocate General, Crimina Law
Division, 2200 Army Pentagon, Room
3D548, Washington, DC 20310-2200.

Suggested improvements. Users are
invited to send comments and suggested
improvements on DA Form 2028 (Recom-
mended Changes to Publications and
Blank Forms) directly to the Office of
The Judge Advocate General, Criminal
Law Division, 2200 Army Pentagon,
Room 3D548, Washington, DC 20310-
2200.

Distribution. This publication is availa-
ble in electronic media. Specia distribu-
tion of this publication in paper was made
in accordance with initial distribution
number 092038, intended for command
levels C, D, and E for the active Army,
the Army National Guard/Army National
Guard of the United States, and the
United States Army Reserve.

*This regulation supersedes AR 27-10, dated 3 October 2011, and Army Directive 2014-19, dated 27 June 2014.
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Chapter 1
Introduction

1-1. Purpose

This regulation prescribes the policies and procedures pertaining to the administration of military justice and imple-
ments the Manual for Courts-Martial, United States, 2012, hereafter referred to as the MCM, and the rules for courts-
martial (RCMs) contained in the MCM.

1-2. References
See appendix A.

1-3. Explanation of abbreviations and terms
See the glossary.

1-4. Responsibilities

a. The Judge Advocate General (TJAG) is responsible for the overall supervision and administration of military
justice within the Army.

b. The Chief Trial Judge, U.S. Army Tria Judiciary, as designee of TJAG, is responsible for the supervision and
administration of the U.S. Army Trial Judiciary and the Military Magistrate Program.

c. The Chief, U.S. Army Trial Defense Service (USATDS), as designee of TJAG, is responsible for the detail,
supervision, and control of defense counsel services within the Army.

Chapter 2
Investigation and Prosecution of Crimes With Concurrent Jurisdiction

2-1. Implementing authority
This chapter implements a memorandum of understanding (MOU) between the Department of Defense (DOD) and the
Department of Justice (DQJ), delineating the areas of responsibility for investigating and prosecuting offenses over
which the two departments have concurrent jurisdiction. The MOU is available at Appendix 3-1, MCM, 2012, and is
implemented by DODI 5525.07.

2-2. Local application

Decisions with respect to the provisions of the MOU will, whenever possible, be made at the local level between the
responsible DOJ investigative agency and the local military commander (see para D.1. of the MOU). If an agreement is
not reached at the local level, the local commander will (if he or she does not exercise general court-martia (GCM)
jurisdiction) promptly advise the commander exercising GCM jurisdiction over his or her command. If the commander
exercising GCM jurisdiction (acting through his or her SJA) is unable to effect an agreement, the matter will be
reported to the Office of The Judge Advocate General (OTJAG), Criminal Law Division, 2200 Army Pentagon, Room
3D548, Washington, DC 20310-2200.

2-3. Action by convening authority
Before taking any action with a view toward court-martial, courts-martial convening authorities will ensure that Federal
civilian authorities are consulted under the MOU in cases likely to be prosecuted in the U.S. district courts.

2-4. Grants of immunity

a. General. Only general court-martial convening authorities (GCMCAS) may issue grants of immunity under the
Uniform Code of Military Justice (UCMJ), RCM 704, and directives issued by the Secretary of the Army (SECAR-
MY), subject to the guidance set forth in this paragraph.

b. Persons subject to the Uniform Code of Military Justice.

(1) The authority of courts-martial convening authorities extends only to grants of immunity from action under the
UCMJ. However, even if it is determined that a witness is subject to the UCMJ, the convening authority should not
grant immunity before determining under the MOU that the DOJ has no interest in the case.

(2) In order to encourage the reporting of serious offenses, GCMCAs should consider issuing grants of immunity to
alleged victims in cases in which the victim is subject to the UCMJ and is suspected of having committed minor
collateral misconduct.

¢. Persons not subject to the Uniform Code of Military Justice. If a prospective witness is not subject to the UCMJ
or if DOJ has an interest in the case, the grant of immunity must be issued under Sections 60016005, Title 18, United
States Code (18 USC 6001-6005). In those instances, the following procedures are applicable:

(1) Draft a proposed order to testify for the signature of the GCMCA. Include in the requisite findings that the
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witness is likely to refuse to testify on Fifth Amendment grounds and that the testimony of the witness is necessary to
the public interest. Forward the unsigned draft to OTJAG, Criminal Law Division, 2200 Army Pentagon, Room 3D548,
Washington, DC 20310-2200, for coordination with DOD and the DOJ and approval by the U.S. Attorney General.

(2) Include the following information in the request, if available:

(@) Name, citation, or other identifying information of the proceeding in which the order is to be used.

(b) Name and social security number of the individual for whom the immunity is requested.

(c) Name of the employer or company with which the witness is associated.

(d) Date and place of birth of the witness.

(e) Federal Bureau of Investigation number or local police number, if any.

() Whether any State or Federal charges are pending against the prospective witness, the nature of the charges, and
whether the State or Federal Prosecutor in the case concurs or objects to the proposed grant of immunity.

(g) Whether the witness is currently incarcerated and if so, under what conditions and for what length of time.

(h) Military status and organization.

(i) Whether the witness would be likely to testify under a grant of immunity, thus precluding the use of the
testimony against them.

(1) Factual basis supporting the finding that the witness is likely to refuse to testify on Fifth Amendment grounds.

(K) General nature of the charges to be tried in the proceeding at which the witness testimony is desired.

(I) Offenses, if known, to which the witness' testimony might tend to incriminate the witness.

(m) The anticipated date on which the order will be issued.

(n) A summary of the expected testimony of the witness concerning the particular case in issue.

(3) If the U.S. Attorney Genera has authorized a grant of immunity, furnish the following information through the
Office of The Judge Advocate General, Crimina Law Division, 2200 Army Pentagon, Room 3D548, Washington, DC
20310-2200, to the Witness Immunity Unit, Criminal Division, Department of Justice, Washington, DC 20530, after
the witness has testified, refused to testify, or the proceedings have been terminated without the witness being called to
testify:

(@) Name, citation, or other identifying information of the proceeding in which the order was requested.

(b) Date of the examination of the witness.

(c) Name and address of the witness.

(d) Whether the witness invoked the privilege against self-incrimination.

(e) Whether the immunity order was issued.

() Whether the witness testified pursuant to the order.

(g) If the witness refused to comply with the order, whether contempt proceedings were ingtituted or are contem-
plated, and the result of the contempt proceeding, if concluded.

d. Cases involving threats to national security. A proposed grant of immunity will be forwarded to the Office of The
Judge Advocate General, Criminal Law Division, 2200 Army Pentagon, Room 3D548, Washington, DC 20310-2200.
After coordination with the Office of the Deputy Chief of Staff, G—2 the proposed grant will be forwarded through the
Army’s general counsel, to the general counsel, DOD, for consultation with the DOJ in cases involving—

(1) Espionage.

(2) Subversion.

(3) Aiding the enemy.

(4) Sabotage.

(5) Spying.

(6) Violation of rules or statutes concerning classified information, or the foreign relations of the United States.

2-5. Administrative action

Prior to initiating an investigation in support of administrative action into a matter which is subject to a pending DOJ
crimina investigation or prosecution, the investigative agency will coordinate with and obtain concurrence from the
appropriate DOJ prosecutor or investigative agency.

2-6. Threats against the President

In cases involving persons subject to the UCMJ who have allegedly made threats against the President or successors to
the Presidency, in violation of 18 USC 871, the U.S. Secret Service has primary investigative responsibility. All
investigative agencies will cooperate fully with the Secret Service when called on to do so. After the investigation is
completed, the SJA representing the commander who exercises GCM jurisdiction over the military suspect will meet
with representatives of the DOJ and the Secret Service to determine whether military authorities or DOJ will exercise
further jurisdiction in the case.

2-7. Reporting requirements for cases involving national security crimes
a. Prior to preferral of charges SJAs will provide an unclassified executive summary via email to Office of The
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Judge Advocate General, Criminal Law Division, 2200 Army Pentagon, Room 3D548, Washington, DC 20310-2200,
regarding potential court-martial proceedings in cases that have national security implications. This is in addition to the
reporting requirements set forth for cases involving a threat to U.S. national security in which a grant of immunity is
being proposed in accordance with paragraph 2—4d, above, SJIAs will also provide a copy of the unclassified executive
summary via email to the International and Operational Law Division (DAJA—-O), 2200 Army Pentagon, Room
3D548, Washington, DC 20310-2200. These cases involve offenses such as—

(1) Sedition (Articles 82 and 94, Uniform Code of Military Justice) when foreign power involvement is suspected.

(2) Aiding the enemy by giving intelligence to the enemy (UCMJ, Art. 104).

(3) Spying (UCMJ, Art. 106).

(4) Espionage (UCMJ, Art. 106a).

(5) Suspected or actual unauthorized acquisition of military technology, research and development information, or
Army acquisition program information by—or on behalf of—a foreign power.

(6) Violation of rules or statutes concerning classified information, or the foreign relations of the United States.

(7) Sabotage conducted by or on behalf of a foreign power.

(8) Subversion, treason, domestic terrorism, and known or suspected unauthorized disclosure of classified informa-
tion or material.

(9) Attempts (UCMJ, Art. 80), solicitations (UCMJ, Art. 134), or conspiracies (UCMJ, Art. 81) to commit (1)
through (8), above.

b. Staff Judge Advocate notification is designed to improve force protection and security while at the same time
protecting the accused's right to a fair trial, free from unlawful command influence.

Chapter 3
Nonjudicial Punishment

Section |
Applicable Policies (para 1, part V, MCM, 2012)

3-1. General
This chapter implements and amplifies UCMJ, Art. 15, Uniform Code of Military Justice, and Part V, MCM, 2012. No
action should be taken under the authority of UCMJ, Art. 15 without referring to the appropriate provisions of the
MCM and this chapter. This chapter prescribes requirements, policies, limitations, and procedures for—

a. Commanders at al levels imposing nonjudicial punishment.

b. Members on whom this punishment is to be imposed.

c. Other persons who may take some action with respect to the proceedings.

3-2. Use of nonjudicial punishment
A commander should use nonpunitive measures to the fullest extent to further the efficiency of the command before
resorting to nonjudicial punishment (see para 1d(1), part V, MCM, 2012). Use of nonjudicial punishment is proper in
all cases involving minor offenses in which nonpunitive measures are considered inadequate or inappropriate. If it is
clear that nonjudicia punishment will not be sufficient to meet the ends of justice, more stringent measures must be
taken. Prompt action is essential for nonjudicial punishment to have the proper corrective effect. Nonjudicial punish-
ment may be imposed to—

a. Correct, educate, and reform offenders whom the imposing commander determines cannot benefit from less
stringent measures.

b. Preserve a Soldier's record of service from unnecessary stigma by record of court-martial conviction.

c. Further military efficiency by disposing of minor offenses in a manner requiring less time and personnel than trial
by court-martial.

3-3. Relationship of nonjudicial punishment to nonpunitive measures (para 1g, part V, MCM, 2012)

a. General. Nonjudicial punishment is imposed to correct misconduct in violation of the UCMJ. Such conduct may
result from intentional disregard of, or failure to comply with, prescribed standards of military conduct. Nonpunitive
measures usually deal with misconduct resulting from simple neglect, forgetfulness, laziness, inattention to instructions,
sloppy habits, immaturity, difficulty in adjusting to disciplined military life, and similar deficiencies. These measures
are primarily tools for teaching proper standards of conduct and performance and do not constitute punishment.
Included among nonpunitive measures are denial of pass or other privileges, counseling, administrative reduction in
grade, administrative reprimands and admonitions, extra training (see AR 600-20), bar to reenlistment, and military
occupational specialty (MOS) reclassification. Certain commanders may administratively reduce enlisted personnel for
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inefficiency and other reasons. This authority exists apart from any authority to punish misconduct under UCMJ, Art.
15. These two separate and distinct kinds of authority should not be confused.

b. Reprimands and admonitions.

(1) Commanding officers have authority to give admonitions or reprimands either as an administrative measure or as
nonjudicial punishment. If imposed as a punitive measure under UCMJ, Art. 15, the procedure set forth in paragraph 4,
Part V, MCM, 2012, and in section Ill of this chapter must be followed.

(2) A written administrative admonition or reprimand will contain a statement that it has been imposed as an
administrative measure and not as punishment under UCMJ, Art. 15 (see AR 600-37). Admonitions and reprimands
imposed as punishment under UCMJ, Art. 15, whether administered orally or in writing (see para 5¢(1), part V, MCM,
2012), should state clearly that they were imposed as punishment under that article.

c. Extra training or instruction. One of the most effective nonpunitive measures available to a commander is extra
training or instruction (see AR 600-20). It is used when a Soldier's duty performance has been substandard or
deficient; for example, a Soldier who fails to maintain proper attire may be required to attend classes on the wearing of
the uniform and stand inspection until the deficiency is corrected. The training or instruction must relate directly to the
deficiency observed and must be oriented to correct that particular deficiency. Extra training or instruction may be
conducted after duty hours. Normally, commanders should not impose non-judicial punishment for an offense for
which a Soldier previously received corrective training or extra military instruction and successfully completed the
training or instruction.

3-4. Personal exercise of discretion (para 1d(2), part V, MCM, 2012)

a. A commander will personally exercise discretion in the nonjudicial punishment process by—

(1) Evauating the case to determine whether proceedings under UCMJ, Art. 15 should be initiated.

(2) Determining whether the Soldier committed the offense(s) where UCMJ, Art. 15 proceedings are initiated and
the Soldier does not demand trial by court-martial.

(3) Determining the amount and nature of any punishment, if punishment is appropriate.

b. No superior may direct that a subordinate authority impose punishment under UCMJ, Art. 15 or issue regulations,
orders, or so-caled “guides’ that either directly or indirectly suggest to subordinate commanders that—

(1) Certain categories of offenders or offenses should be disposed of by punishment under UCMJ, Art. 15.

(2) Predetermined kinds or amounts of punishment should be imposed for certain categories of offenders or
offenses.

c. A superior commander may send or return a case to a subordinate for appropriate disposition if necessary and
within the jurisdiction of the subordinate. A superior commander may also reserve personaly, or to the superior
commander’s delegate, the right to exercise UCMJ, Art. 15 authority over a particular case or over certain categories of
offenders or offenses (see para 3-7d, below).

3-5. Reference to superior

a. See RCM 306(b). Nonjudicial punishment should be administered at the lowest level of command commensurate
with the needs of discipline, after thoroughly considering—

(1) The nature and circumstances of the offense.

(2) The age, previous record, maturity, and experience of the offender.

b. If a commander determines that the commander’s authority under UCMJ, Art. 15 is insufficient to impose a
proper punishment, the case may be referred to an appropriate superior. The same procedure will be followed if the
authority of the commander to exercise UCMJ, Art. 15 powers has been withheld or limited (see paras 34, above, and
3-7d, below). In transmitting a case for action by a superior, ho recommendation of the nature or extent of the
punishment to be imposed will be made. Transmittal should normally be accomplished by written correspondence
using DA Form 5109 (Request to Superior to Exercise Art. 15, UCMJ, Jurisdiction).

3-6. Filing determination

a. A commander’s decision on whether to file a record of nonjudicial punishment in the performance folder of a
Soldier's official military personnel file (OMPF) is as important as the decision on whether to impose nonjudicia
punishment itself. In making a filing determination for a record of nonjudicial punishment which does not include a
finding of guilty to a sex-related offense, as set forth in subparagraph b below, the imposing commander must weigh
carefully the interests of the Soldier's career against those of the Army to produce and advance only the most qualified
personnel for positions of leadership, trust, and responsibility. In this regard, the imposing commander should consider
the Soldier's age, grade, total service (with particular attention to the Soldier's recent performance and past miscon-
duct), and whether the Soldier has more than one record of nonjudicia punishment directed for filing in the restricted
folder (see subparagraph c, below). However, the interests of the Army are compelling when the record of nonjudicial
punishment reflects unmitigated moral turpitude or lack of integrity, patterns of misconduct, evidence of serious
character deficiency, or a substantial breach of military discipline. In such cases, the record should be filed in the
performance folder.
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b. Any record of nonjudicia punishment which includes a finding of guilty for having committed a sex-related
offense will be filed as a sex-related offense in the performance folder of the Soldier’s OMPF. This requirement
applies to Soldiers in all components, regardless of grade. Imposing commanders do not have the option to designate
these documents be filed locally or in the restricted folder of the Soldier’s OMPF. Documents will be archived on the
interactive Personnel Electronic Records Management System (iPERMS). For the purpose of this subparagraph, sex-
related offenses include a violation of the following sections of Title 10, United States Code, and equivalent articles of
the Uniform Code of Military Justice (UCMJ):

(1) Section 920-Article 120: Rape and sexual assault. This includes rape, sexual assault, and aggravated sexual
contact.

(2) Section 920a-Article 120a: Stalking.

(3) Section 920b-Article 120b: Rape and sexual assault of a child. This includes rape, sexua assault, and sexual
abuse of a child.

(4) Section 920c-Article 120c: Other sexual misconduct. This includes indecent viewing, visual recording, or
broadcasting.

(5) Section 925-Article 125: Forcible sodomy; bestiality.

(6) Section 880-Article 80: Attempt (any attempt to commit these offenses).

c¢. If arecord of nonjudicia punishment has been designated for filing in a Soldier’s restricted folder, the Soldier's
OMPF will be reviewed to determine if the restricted folder contains a previous record of nonjudicial punishment. In
those cases in which a previous DA Form 2627 (Record of Proceedings under Art. 15, UCMJ), that has not been
wholly set aside has been filed in the restricted folder and in which prior to that punishment, the Soldier was in the
grade of sergeant (SGT) or higher, the present DA Form 2627 will be filed in the performance folder. The filing should
be recorded on the present DA Form 2627 in block 11. The Soldier concerned and the imposing commander will be
informed of the filing of the DA Form 2627 in the performance folder.

d. The filing of a record of nonjudicial punishment imposed upon a member of another armed Service will be done
in a manner consistent with the governing regulations of that member's parent Service (see Manual of The Judge
Advocate General, Navy 0101 (JAGMAN 0101) for Navy and Marine Corps personnel; Air Force Instruction 51-201
(AFI 51-201) for Air Force personnel; and the U.S. Coast Guard Military Justice Manua (MJM), and Commandant,
U.S. Coast Guard instruction M5810.1D (COMDTINST M5810.1D) for that service).

Section 1l
Authority (para 2, part V, MCM, 2012)

3—-7. Who may impose nonjudicial punishment

a. Commanders. Unless otherwise specified in this regulation or if authority to impose nonjudicial punishment has
been limited or withheld by a superior commander (see subparagraph d, below), any commander is authorized to
exercise the disciplinary powers conferred by UCMJ, Art. 15. The management of installations by Installation
Management Command (IMCOM) will not affect the exclusive authority of commanders, as defined by this regulation,
to impose nonjudicial punishment.

(1) The term commander, as used in this chapter, means a commissioned officer who, by virtue of that officer's
grade and assignment, exercises primary command authority over a military organization or prescribed territorial area,
that under pertinent official directives is recognized as a command.

(2) The term imposing commander refers to the commander or other officer who actually imposes the nonjudicial
punishment.

(3) Commands include the following:

(a) Companies, troops, and batteries.

(b) Numbered units and detachments.

(c) Missions.

(d) Army elements of unified commands, subordinate unified commands (subunified), and joint task forces.

(e) Service schools.

(f) Area commands.

(4) Commands also include, in general, any other organization of the kind mentioned in (1), above, (for example, a
provisional unit designated under AR 220-5), the commander of which is the one looked to by superior authority as the
individua chiefly responsible for maintaining discipline in that organization. Thus, an infantry company, whether or
not separate or detached (RCM 504(b)(2)), is considered to be a command. However, an infantry platoon that is part of
a company and is not separate or detached is not considered to be a command. Although a commissioned officer
exercising command is usually designated as the commander, this position may be designated by various other titles
having the same official connotation—for example, commandant, chief of mission, or superintendent. Whether an
officer is a commander is determined by the duties he or she performs, not necessarily by the title of the position
occupied.

b. Multi-Service commanders and officers in charge. A multi-Service commander or officer in charge, to whose
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command the members of the Army are assigned or attached, may impose nonjudicial punishment upon such Soldiers.
A multi-Service commander or officer in charge, alternatively, may designate one or more Army units and will for
each such Army unit designate an Army commissioned officer as commanding officer for the administration of
discipline under the UCMJ, Art. 15. A copy of such designation will be furnished to Office of The Judge Advocate
General, Criminal Law Division, 2200 Army Pentagon, Room 3D548, Washington, DC 20310-2200. A multi-Service
commander or officer in charge, when imposing nonjudicial punishment upon a military member of their command,
will apply the provisions of this regulation (see para 3-8c, below).

c. Delegation. The authority given to a commander under UCMJ, Art. 15 is an attribute of command and, except as
provided in this paragraph, may not be delegated. Pursuant to the authority vested in the SECARMY under the
provisions of UCMJ, Art. 15(a), the following rules with respect to delegation of powers are declared:

(1) Any commander authorized to exercise GCM jurisdiction, or any commanding general, may delegate that
commander’s or commanding general’s powers, under UCMJ, Art. 15, to one commissioned officer actually exercising
the function of deputy or assistant commander. A commander may, instead of delegating powers under UCMJ, Art. 15
to a deputy or assistant commander, delegate such powers to the chief of staff of the command, provided the chief of
staff is a general officer, or frocked to a general officer grade. An officer in command who is frocked to the grade of
brigadier general is not a general officer in command as defined in paragraph 2c, Part V, MCM, 2012, and lacks the
authority to impose some punishments, including forfeitures and arrest upon commissioned officers. (See para
5(b)(1)(B), part V, MCM, 2012, table 3-1B (Maximum punishment for commissioned officers that may be imposed by
a genera officer in command or GCMCA), and the areas of AR 600-8-29 that discuss the limitations of frocked
officers.)

(2) Authority delegated under c(1), above, may be exercised only when the delegate is senior in grade to the person
punished. A delegate need not, when acting as a superior authority on an appeal, be senior in grade to the imposing
commander.

(3) Delegations of authority to exercise UCMJ, Art. 15 powers will be made in writing; for example, a memoran-
dum. It will designate the officer on whom the powers are conferred by name and position. Unless limited by the terms
of such delegation or by (2), above, an officer to whom this authority is granted may exercise any power that is
possessed by the officer who delegated the authority. Unless otherwise specified in the written authorization, a
delegation of UCMJ, Art. 15 authority will remain effective until—

(a) The officer who delegated the officer’s powers ceases to occupy that position, other than because of temporary
absence;

(b) The officer to whom these powers have been delegated ceases to occupy the position wherein the officer was
delegated such powers, other than because of temporary absence; or

(c) Notification that the delegation has been terminated is made in writing. A delegation does not divest the
delegating officer of the right to personaly exercise the delegating officer’s UCMJ, Art. 15 powers in any case in
which the delegating officer desires to act. Although an appeal from punishment imposed under a delegation of UCMJ,
Art. 15 powers will be acted on by the authority next superior to the delegating officer (see para 3-30, below), the
latter may take the action described in paragraph 3-32, below. (See paras 6 and 7, part V, MCM, 2012, and para 3-38,
below.)

d. Limitation of exercise of disciplinary authority by subordinates. Any commander having authority under UCMJ,
Art. 15 may limit or withhold the exercise of such authority by subordinate commanders. For example, the powers of
subordinate commanders to exercise UCMJ, Art. 15 authority over certain categories of military personnel, offenses, or
individual cases may be reserved by a superior commander. A superior authority may limit or withhold any power that
a subordinate might otherwise have under this paragraph.

3-8. Persons on whom nonjudicial punishment may be imposed

a. Military personnel of a commander’s command. Unless such authority is limited or withheld by superior
competent authority, a commander may impose punishment under UCMJ, Art. 15 on commissioned officers and other
military personnel of a commander’'s command, except cadets of the United States Military Academy (USMA).

(1) For the purpose of UCMJ, Art. 15, military personnel are considered to be “of the command” of a commander if
they are—

(a) Assigned to an organization commanded by that commander.

(b) Affiliated with the command (by attachment, detail, or otherwise) under conditions, either expressed or implied,
that indicate that the commander of the unit to which affiliated and the commander of the unit to which they are
assigned are to exercise administrative or disciplinary authority over them.

(2) Under similar circumstances, a commander may be assigned territorial command responsibility so that all or
certain military personnel in the area will be considered to be of the command for the purpose of UCMJ, Art. 15.

(3) To determine if an individual is of the command of a particular commanding officer, refer first to those written
or oral orders or directives that affect the status of the individual. If orders or directives do not expressly confer
authority to administer nonjudicial punishment to the commander of the unit with which the Soldier is affiliated or
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present (as when, for example, they contain no provision attaching the Soldier “for disciplinary purposes’), consider all
attendant circumstances, such as—

(a8) The phraseology used in the orders.

(b) Where the Soldier dlept, ate, was paid, performed duty, the duration of the status, and other similar factors.

(4) If orders or directives include such terms as “attached for administration of military justice,” or simply “attached
for administration,” the individual so attached will be considered to be of the command, of the commander, of the unit
of attachment for the purpose of UCMJ, Art. 15.

b. Termination of status. Nonjudicial punishment will not be imposed on an individual by a commander after the
individual ceases to be of the commander’s command, because of transfer or otherwise. However, if UCMJ, Art. 15
proceedings have been instituted and punishment has not been imposed prior to the time of the change of assignment,
the commander who ingtituted the proceedings may forward the record of proceedings to the gaining commander for
appropriate disposition.

c. Personnel of other armed forces. An Army commander is not prohibited from imposing nonjudicial punishment
on a military member of his or her command solely because the member is a member of another armed service. Other
provisions of this regulation notwithstanding, an Army commander may impose punishment upon a member of another
Service only under the circumstances, and according to the procedures, prescribed by the member’s parent Service. (In
particular, see JAGMAN 0101 for Navy and Marine Corps personnel; AFl 51-201, for Air Force personnel, and MJM,
COMDINST M5810.1D, for Coast Guard personnel.)

d. Persons serving with or accompanying an armed force in the field in time of declared war or contingency
operation. Authority to impose punishment under UCMJ, Art. 15, on persons subject to jurisdiction under UCMJ, Art.
2(a)(10) is limited to those commanders described in chapter 27 of this regulation and as described in guidance
provided by the Secretary of Defense by memorandum dated 10 March 2008.

3-9. Minor offenses

Generally, the term “minor” includes misconduct not involving any greater degree of criminality than is involved in the
average offense tried by summary court-martial (SCM). It does not include misconduct of a type that, if tried by GCM,
could be punished by dishonorable discharge or confinement for more than 1 year (see para 1e, part V, MCM, 2012).
Thisis not a hard and fast rule; the circumstances of the offense might indicate that action under UCMJ, Art. 15 would
be appropriate even in a case faling outside these categories. Violations of, or failures to obey, general orders or
regulations may be minor offenses if the prohibited conduct itself is of a minor nature even though also prohibited by a
general order or regulation. Whether an offense is “minor” is a matter within the discretion of the commander imposing
nonjudicial punishment. Nonjudicial punishment for an offense other than a minor offense (even when thought by the
commander to be minor) is not a bar to subsequent trial by court-martial for the same offense. See RCM
907(b)(2)(D)(iv). However, the accused may show at trial that nonjudicial punishment was imposed, and if the accused
does so, this fact must be considered in determining an appropriate sentence. See UCMJ, Art. 15(f) and RCM
1001(c)(1)(B).

3-10. Double punishment prohibited

When nonjudicia punishment has been imposed for an offense, punishment may not again be imposed for the same
offense under UCMJ, Art. 15. Once nonjudicial punishment has been imposed, it may not be increased, upon appeal or
otherwise. When a commander determines that nonjudicial punishment is appropriate for a particular service member,
all known offenses determined to be appropriate for disposition by nonjudicial punishment and ready to be considered
at that time, including all offenses arising from a single incident or course of conduct, will ordinarily be considered
together and not made the basis for multiple punishments. This provision does not restrict the commander’s right to
prefer court-martial charges for a non-minor offense previously punished under the provisions of UCMJ, Art. 15.

3-11. Restriction on punishment after exercise of jurisdiction by civilian authorities
Chapter 4 covers the limitations on nonjudicial punishment after exercise of jurisdiction by civilian authorities.

3-12. Statute of limitations

Nonjudicial punishment may not be imposed for offenses which were committed more than 2 years before the date of
imposition. Computation of this 2-year limitation is in accordance with the UCMJ, Arts. 43(c) and (d). The period of
limitations does not run when the Soldier concerned is absent without authority; fleeing from justice; outside the
territory where the United States has authority to apprehend; in the custody of civil authorities; or, in the hands of the
enemy.
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Section Il
Procedure (para 4, part V, MCM, 2012)

3-13. General
The authority to impose nonjudicia punishment charges a commander with the responsibility of exercising the
commander’s authority in an absolutely fair and judicious manner (see para 1d, part V, MCM, 2012).

3-14. Preliminary inquiry

a. The commander of the alleged offender must ensure that the matter is investigated promptly and adequately. The
investigation should provide the commander with sufficient information to make an appropriate disposition of the
incident. The investigation should cover—

(1) Whether an offense was committed.

(2) Whether the Soldier was involved.

(3) The character and military record of the Soldier.

b. Usudly the preliminary investigation is informal and consists of interviews with witnesses and/or review of
police or other informative reports. If, after the preliminary inquiry, the commander determines, based on the evidence
currently available, that the Soldier probably has committed an offense and that a nonjudicial punishment procedure is
appropriate, the commander should (unless the case is to be referred to a superior commander (see para 3-5)) take
action as set forth in this section.

3-15. Commander’s guide for notification and imposition
In al cases, other than summarized proceedings, commanders should use appendix B of this regulation as a guide in
conducting the proceedings.

3-16. Summarized proceedings

a. Preliminary inquiry.

(1) A commander, after a preliminary inquiry into an alleged offense by an enlisted Soldier, may use summarized
proceedings if it is determined that should punishment be found to be appropriate, it should not exceed—

(a) Extra duties for 14 days.

(b) Restriction for 14 days.

(c) Ord reprimand or admonition.

(d) Any combination of the above.

(2) The DA Form 2627-1 (Summarized Record of Proceedings Under Art. 15, UCMJ), will be used to record the
proceedings. An illustrated example of a completed DA Form 2627-1 is shown at figure 3-1, below. The rules and
limitations concerning punishments in section IV and provisions regarding clemency in section V are applicable.
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RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS UNDER ARTICLE 15, UCMJ
For use of this form, see AR 27-10; the proponent agency is OTJAG-CL.

NAME GRADE SSN UNIT & LOCATION MONTHLY BASE PAY
000-00-0000 | > €0 2187t IN, 3d BCT
DOE, John A. E-3 b 101st ABN DIV, FTCKY 1,823.40

1. I am considering whether you should be punished under Article 15, UCMJ, for the following misconduct:

In that you, did, on or about 10 March 2016, without authority, absent yourself from your unit, to wit: A Company, 2d Battalion, 187th
Infant? Regiment, 3d Brigade Combat Team, 101st Airborne Division, located at Fort Campbell, KY, and did so remain absent until on or
about 20 March 2016. This is in violation of Article 86, UCMJ.

2. You are not required to make any statements, but if you do, they may be used against you in this proceeding or at a trial by court-martial. You have
several rights under this Article 15 proceeding. First I want you to understand I have not yet made a decision whether or not you will be punished. I will not
impose any punishment unless I am convinced beyond a reasonable doubt that you commutted the offense(s). You may ordinarily have an open hearing before
me. You may request a person to speak on your behalf. You may present witnesses or other evidence to show why you shouldn't be punished at all
(matters of defensej or why punist t should be very light (matters of extenuation and mitigation). 1 will consider everything you present before deciding
whether T will impose punishment or the type and amount of punishment I will impose. If you do not want me to dispose of this report of misconduct under
Article 15, you have the right to demand trial by court-martial instead. In deciding what you want to do you have the right to consult with legal counsel

located at Trial Defense Services, Building 35, FTCKY DSN 635-0000 . You now have 48 hours to decide what you want to do.
NAME, GRADE, AND ORGANIZATION OF COMMANDER SIGNATURE DATE
JAMES A. DOE, 0-3, A Co., 2-187th IN, 3d BCT, 101st ABN DIV 20160401

as follows (Initial appropriate blocks, date, and sign):

/

3. Having been atforded the opportunity to consult with counsel and understanding my rights liWove and on page three of this form, my decisions are

1 demand trial by court-martial.

b. 1 do not demand trial by court-martial and in the Article 15 proceedings:

(1) TIrequest the hearing be: E Open z‘ Closed

(2) A person to speak in my behalf: :} Is requested :l Is not requested

(3) Matters in defense, extenuation, and/or mitigation:

z‘ Are not presented :} Are attached }:‘ Will be presented in person
NAME AND GRADE OF SERVICE MEMBER SIGNATURE DATE
JOHN A. DOE, E-3 20160403
4a. Inam m Open E Closed  hearing, having considered all mattdrs gresented, I hereby make the following finding:
.
L .
_ Guilty of All [:j Guilty of Some Specifications Not Guilty of All Specifications
Specifications. (line out Not Guilty Specifications). (line out all Specifications and sign below).

Based on my findings, I impose the punishments that are officially recorded in Item 6 of this form.

4b. I direct the original DA Form 2627 be filed m the:

[:] Performance section of the OMPF I:] Restricted section of the OMPF bN;?o?; :?i?;:‘ (‘;‘;iz?i:iixo;

4c. You are advised of your right to appeal to the next superior authority: CDR, 2-187th IN, 3d BCT, 101st ABN DIV within five (5) calendar days.

An appeal made after that time may be rejected as untimely. Punishment is effective immediat% ur)]ess otherwise stated in Item 6.

NAME, GRADE, AND ORGANIZATION OF COMMANDER SIGNATURE DATE

JAMES A. DOE, 0-3, A Co., 2-187th IN, 3d BCT, 101st ABN DIV 20160403

5. (Initial appropriate block, date, and sign)

'/l/‘ 1 do not appeal :l T appeal and do not submit additional f?’dtter 1 appeal and submit additional matters

NAME AND RANK OF SERVICE MEMBER siGNar(RE DATE

JOHN A. DOE, PV2 20160403
DA FORM 2627, OCT 2011 PREVIOUS EDITIONS ARE OBSOLETE. (/ F;@%ELQ cif051

V1

Figure 3-1. Sample of completed DA Form 2627
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b. Notification and explanation of rights. If an imposing commander determines that summarized proceedings are
appropriate, the designated subordinate officer or noncommissioned officer (NCO) (see para 3-18, below), or the
commander personally, will notify the Soldier of the following:

(1) The imposing commander’s intention to initiate proceedings under UCMJ, Art. 15.

(2) The fact that the imposing commander intends to use summarized proceedings and the maximum punishments
that can be imposed under these proceedings.

(3) The right to remain silent.

(4) Offenses that the Soldier allegedly has committed and the articles of the UCMJ allegedly violated.

(5) Theright to demand tria (see para 4a(5), part V, MCM, 2012). Soldiers attached to or embarked in a vessel may
not demand trial by court-martial in lieu of nonjudicial punishment. Any other Soldier will be advised that the Soldier
has a right to demand trial and that the demand for trial must be made at the start of the hearing prior to any
consideration, examination, or presentation of evidence. The Soldier’s decision not to demand trial is irrevocable. The
Soldier will be told that such trial could be by SCM, special court-martial (SPCM), or GCM. The Soldier will also be
told that the Soldier may object to trial by SCM and that at SPCM or GCM the Soldier would be entitled to be
represented by qualified military counsel, or by civilian counsel obtained at no expense to the Government.

(6) The right to confront witnesses, examine the evidence, and submit matters in defense, extenuation, and/or
mitigation.

(7) The right to appeal.

c. Decision period. The Soldier will be given the opportunity to—

(1) Accept the UCMJ, Art. 15 nonjudicial punishment.

(2) Request a reasonable time, normally 24 hours, to decide whether to demand trial by court-martial and to gather
matters in defense, extenuation, and/or mitigation. Because of the limited nature of the possible punishment, the Soldier
has no right to consult with legally qualified counsel.

d. Hearing. Unless the Soldier demands trial by courts-martial within the decision period, the imposing commander
may proceed with the hearing (see para 3-18g(1)). The hearing will consist of the following:

(1) Consideration of evidence, written or oral, against the Soldier.

(2) Examination of available evidence by the Soldier.

(3) Presentation by the Soldier of testimony of available witnesses or other matters, in defense, extenuation, and/or
mitigation.

(4) Determination of guilt or innocence by the imposing commander. Before finding a Soldier guilty, the com-
mander must be convinced beyond a reasonable doubt that the Soldier committed the offense(s).

(5) Imposition of punishment or termination of the proceedings.

(6) Explanation of right to appeal.

e. Appeal. The decision to appeal will be recorded in block 4, DA Form 2627-1. This will be done according to the
procedures set forth in paragraph 3-32, below. The Soldier will be given a reasonable time (normally no more than 5
calendar days) within which to submit an appeal (see para 3-29, below). The Soldier may, pending submission and
decision on the appeal, be required to undergo the punishment imposed, but once submitted, such appeal will be
promptly decided. If the appeal is not decided within 3 calendar days, excluding the day of submission, and if the
Soldier so requests, further performance of any punishments involving deprivation of liberty will be delayed pending
the decision on the appeal.

f. Recording and filing of DA Form 2627-1. The proceedings will be legibly summarized on DA Form 2627-1,
ordinarily with handwritten entries. These forms will be maintained locally in nonjudicial punishment files (file number
27-10f). They will be destroyed at the end of 2 years from the date of imposition of punishment or on the Soldier’'s
transfer from the unit, whichever occurs first. A copy will be provided to the Soldier if a request is submitted during
the filing period.

3-17. Formal proceedings (para 4, part V, MCM, 2012)
A commander who, after a preliminary inquiry, determines—

a. That the Soldier aleged to have committed an offense is an officer, or

b. That punishment, if it should prove to be appropriate, might exceed extra duties for 14 days, restriction for 14
days, oral reprimand on admonition, or any combination thereof, will proceed as set forth below. All entries will be
recorded on DA Form 2627. An illustrated example of a completed DA Form 2627 is shown at figure 3-2, below.
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SUMMARIZED RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS UNDER ARTICLE 15, UCMJ

For use of this form, see AR 27-10, Chapter 3; the proponent agency is OTJAG-CL.

A summarized Article 15 may only be used for enlisted personnel. The punishments that may be imposed are limited to: extra duty for 14 days or less,
restriction for 14 days or less, an oral reprimand/admonition, or any combination thereof. The imposing commander will ensure that the Soldier understands the
rights found on page 2 of this form. An NCO will normally go over these rights with the Soldier.

NAME GRADE SSN UNIT & LOCATION
DOE, John A. E-3 000-00-0000 A Co., 2-187th IN, 3d BCT, FTCKY
1. On 1 April ,20 16 the above Soldier was informed that the commander was considering imposition of nonjudicial punishment under

the provisions of Article 15, UCMJ, Suminarized Proceedings, for the following misconduct:

In that you, did, at or near Fort Campbell, KY, on or about 26 March 2016, without authority, fail to go at the time prescribed to your appointed place of
duty, to wit: 0630 hours, accountability formation. This is in violation of Article 86, UCMJ.

2. The member was advised that no statement was required, but that any statement made could be used against him or her in the proceeding or i a court -
martial. The member was also informed of the right to demand trial by court-martial, the right to present matters in defense, extenuation and/or mitigation, that
any matters presented would be considered by me before deciding whether to impose punishment, the type or amount of punishment, if imposed, and that no
punishment would be imposed unless I was convinced beyond a reasonable doubt that the service member committed the misconduct. The service member
was afforded the opportunity to take 24 hours to make a decision regarding these rights. No demand for trial by court-martial was made. After considering all
1matters presented, the following punishment was imposed:

Guilty of all offenses OR E Guilty of the offenses not lined out OR E Not guilty of all offenses (destroy form)
Based on the findings, I imposed the following punishment (s}:
Extia Duty for N/A  days (max of 14) Restriction for 14 days (max of 14) Oral reprimand or admonition

The punishment(s) of restriction for 14 days was

suspended, to be automatically remitted if not vacated before 20160501 i (was / were}
(date}

3. Tadvised the Soldier of his or her right to appeal to the next superior authority within five (5) calendar days, that an appeal made after that time could be
rejected as untimely, and that the punishment was effective immediately unless otherwise stated. The Soldier:

E Elected immediately not to appeal E:} Requested a reasonable time tg. ﬁlecide whether to appeal.

NAME, RANK, AND ORGANIZATION OF COMMANDER SIGNATURE DATE
JAMES. A. DOE, CPT, A Co., 2-187th IN, 3d BCT, 101st ABN DIV ‘1/@[’ 20160401
4. (Initial appropriate block, date, and sign)
a. ’ I do not appeal. b. E 1 appeal and do not submit matters for considera/xon c. : 1 appeal and submit additional matters
NAMEAND RANK OF SERVICE MEMBER SIGNATURE / DATE
JOHN A. DOE, PFC //\ﬂig/ 20160401
5. After consideration of all matters presented in appeal, the appeal is:
D Denied D Granted as follows:

NAME, RANK, AND ORGANIZATION OF COMMANDER SIGNATURE DATE

20160401
6. Thave seen the action taken on my appeal. SIGNATURE OF SERVICE MEMBER DATE

7. ALLIED DOCUMENTS AND/OR COMMENTS

DA FORM 2627-1, OCT 2011 PREVIOUS EDITIONS ARE OBSOLETE. ii%i g ﬁfﬁ

Figure 3-2. Sample of completed DA Form 2627-1
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3-18. Notification and explanation of rights

a. General. The imposing commander will ensure that the Soldier is notified of the commander’'s intention to
dispose of the matter under the provisions of UCMJ, Art. 15. The Soldier will also be notified of the maximum
punishment that the commander could impose under UCMJ, Art. 15. The Soldier will be provided a copy of DA Form
2627 with items 1 and 2 completed, including the date and signature of the imposing commander. The imposing
commander may authorize a commissioned officer or NCO (sergeant first class (SFC) or above), provided such person
is senior to the Soldier being notified, to deliver the DA Form 2627 and inform the Soldier of the Soldier’s rights. The
NCO performing the notification should ordinarily be the unit first sergeant or the senior NCO of the command
concerned. If it is not possible or practical for an officer or NCO senior to the Soldier to deliver the DA Form 2627
and inform the Soldier of his rights, any judge advocate (JA) may complete the notification process. In such cases, the
notifier should follow the steps in appendix B as modified. The Soldier will be provided with a copy of DA Form 2627
and supporting documents and statements for use during the proceedings. The Soldier will return the copy to the
commander for annotation. It will be given to the Soldier for retention when all proceedings are completed.

b. Right to remain silent. The Soldier will be informed that—

(1) The Soldier is not required to make any statement regarding the offense or offenses of which the Soldier is
suspected, and

(2) Any statement made may be used against the Soldier in the UCMJ, Art. 15 proceedings or in any other
proceedings, including a trial by court-martial.

c. Right to counsel. The Soldier will be informed of the right to consult with counsel and the location of counsel.
For the purpose of this chapter, counsel means the following: a JA, a Department of Army (DA) civilian attorney, or an
officer who is a member of the bar of a Federal court or of the highest court of a State, provided that counsel within
the last two categories are acting under the supervision of either USATDS or a staff or command judge advocate.

d. Right to demand trial. Soldiers attached to or embarked in a vessel may not demand trial by court-martial instead
of nonjudicial punishment. Any other Soldier will be advised that the Soldier has a right to demand trial. The demand
for trial may be made at any time prior to imposition of punishment. The Soldier will be told that if the Soldier
demands trial, trial could be by SCM, SPCM, or GCM. The Soldier will also be told that the Soldier may object to trial
by SCM and that at SPCM or GCM the Soldier would be entitled to be represented by qualified military counsel, or by
civilian counsel obtained at no Government expense.

e. Other rights. The Soldier will be informed of the right to—

(1) Fully present the Soldier's case in the presence, except in rare circumstances, of the imposing commander (see
para 3-18g).

(2) Call witnesses (see para 4c(1)(F), part V, MCM, 2012).

(3) Present evidence.

(4) Request that the Soldier be accompanied by a spokesperson (see para 3-18h, below).

(5) Request an open hearing (see para 3—18g, below).

(6) Examine available evidence.

f. Decision period.

(1) If the Soldier requests a decision period, the Soldier will be given a reasonable time to consult with counsdl,
including time off from duty, if necessary, to decide whether or not to demand trial. The decision period will not begin
until the Soldier has received actual notice and explanation of rights under UCMJ, Art. 15 and has been provided a
copy of DA Form 2627 with items 1 and 2 completed (see para 3-18a, above). The Soldier will be advised that if the
Soldier demands a trial, block 3a of DA Form 2627 must be initialed and item 3 must be signed and dated within the
decision period; otherwise, the commander will proceed under UCMJ, Art. 15. The decision period should be
determined after considering factors such as the complexity of the case and the availability of counsel. Normally, 48
hours is a reasonable decision period. If the Soldier does not request a delay, the commander may continue with the
proceedings immediately. If the Soldier requests a delay, the Soldier may, but only for good reason, be allowed an
additional period, to be determined by the imposing commander, to decide whether to demand trial. If a new imposing
commander takes command after a Soldier has been notified of the original imposing commander’s intent to impose
punishment, the Soldier will be notified of the change. The Soldier will again be given a reasonable decision period in
which to consult with counsel. In either case, item 11 of DA Form 2627, will contain the following: “Para 3-18f(1),
AR 27-10, complied with.”

(2) Prior to deciding whether to demand trial, the Soldier is not entitled to be informed of the type or amount of
punishment the Soldier will receive if nonjudicial punishment ultimately is imposed. The Soldier will be informed of
the maximum punishment that may be imposed under UCMJ, Art. 15 and, on the Soldier’s request, of the maximum
punishment that can be adjudged by court-martial on conviction of the offense(s) involved.

(3) If the Soldier demands trial by court-martial on any offense, no further action will be taken to impose
nonjudicial punishment for that offense, unless the Soldier's demand is voluntarily withdrawn. Whether court-martial
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charges will be preferred against the Soldier for the remaining offense(s) and the level of court-martial selected will be
resolved by the appropriate commander. A Soldier’s demand for trial by court-martial will not bar disposition of minor
offenses by nonpunitive measures by the appropriate commander.

(4) If the Soldier does not demand trial by court-martial prior to expiration of the decision period, including any
extension of time, the imposing commander may continue the proceedings. The imposing commander also may
continue the proceedings if the Soldier, even though demanding trial, refuses to complete or sign item 3, DA Form
2627, within the prescribed time. In such instances, the Soldier will be informed that failure to complete and sign item
3 may be treated as a voluntary withdrawal of any oral demand for tria. If the Soldier persists in the Soldier’s refusal,
and punishment is imposed, in addition to recording the punishment, the following entry will be made in item 4 of DA
Form 2627: “Advised of (his) (her) rights, the Soldier (did not demand trial during the decision period) (refused to
(complete) (sign) item 3).”

g. Hearing.

(1) In the presence of the commander, the Soldier will be allowed to personaly present matters in defense,
extenuation, or mitigation in the presence of the imposing commander, except when appearance is prevented by the
unavailability of the commander or by extraordinary circumstances (for example, the Soldier is stationed at a
geographic location remote from that of the imposing commander and cannot be readily brought before the command-
er). When personal appearance is requested, but is not granted, the imposing commander will appoint a commissioned
officer to conduct the hearing and make a written summary and recommendations. The Soldier will be entitled to
appear before the officer designated to conduct the hearing (see para 4c(1), part V, MCM, 2012). Within the limitations
of AR 27-26, JAs may attend Art. 15 proceedings and provide advice to clients. Advice should be provided during a
recess in the proceedings. When defense counsel, military or civilian, act as spokespersons, they speak on behalf of the
accused and do not serve in a representative capacity.

(2) Ordinarily, hearings are open. The UCMJ, Art. 15 proceedings are not adversarial in nature. However, a Soldier
may request an open or closed hearing. In all cases, the imposing commander will, after considering all the facts and
circumstances, determine whether the hearing will be open or closed (see para 4¢(1)(G), part V, MCM, 2012). An open
hearing is a hearing open to the public but does not require the commander to hold the proceeding in a location
different from that in which the commander conducts normal business—that is, the commander’s office. A closed
hearing is one in which the commander decides that members of the public will not attend. The fact that a Soldier
requests and is granted a closed hearing does not preclude announcement of punishment as provided in paragraph 3-22,
below. The fact that a closed hearing has been granted does not preclude appearance of witnesses. The commander
may grant a request for a closed hearing, yet allow the attendance of certain members of the chain of command or
others deemed appropriate to the conduct of the proceedings.

(3) Staff Judge Advocates or their representatives who attend UCMJ, Art. 15 proceedings in their official capacity
shall strictly comply with AR 27-26, Rule 4-2 and Rule 4-3.

h. Spokesperson. The person who may accompany the Soldier to the Art. 15 proceeding and who spesks on the
Soldier’s behalf need not be a lawyer. An offender has no right to legal counsel at the nonjudicial proceedings. The
Soldier may retain civilian counsel to act as the Soldier's spokesperson at no cost to the Government. However, the
commander need not grant a delay for the appearance of any spokesperson, to include civilian counsel so retained. No
travel fees nor any other costs may be incurred at Government expense for the presence of the spokesperson. The
spokesperson’s presence is voluntary. Because the proceedings are not adversaria in nature, neither the Soldier nor
spokesperson (including any attorney present on behalf of the Soldier) may examine or cross-examine witnesses, unless
permitted by the imposing commander. The Soldier or spokesperson may, however, indicate to the imposing com-
mander relevant issues or questions they wish to explore or ask.

i. Witnesses. The Soldier's request for witnesses in defense, extenuation, or mitigation will be restricted to those
witnesses reasonably available as determined by the imposing commander. To determine whether a witness is
reasonably available, the imposing commander will consider the fact that neither witness nor transportation fees are
authorized. Reasonably available witnesses will ordinarily include only personnel at the installation concerned and
others whose attendance will not unnecessarily delay the proceedings.

j. Evidence. The imposing commander is not bound by the formal rules of evidence before courts-martial and may
consider any matter, including unsworn statements, the commander reasonably believes to be relevant to the offense.

k. Action terminating proceedings. If, after evaluation of al pertinent matters, the imposing commander determines
that nonjudicia punishment is not warranted, the Soldier will be notified that the proceedings have been terminated and
al copies of DA Form 2627 will be destroyed.

I. Imposition of punishment. Punishment will not be imposed unless the commander is convinced beyond a
reasonable doubt that the Soldier committed the offense(s). If the imposing commander decides to impose punishment,
ordinarily the commander will announce the punishment to the Soldier. The commander may, if the commander desires
to do so, explain to the Soldier why a particular punishment was imposed.

m. Right to appeal. The appellate rights and procedures that are available to the Soldier will be explained.
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Section IV
Punishment (para 5, part V, MCM, 2012)

3-19. Rules and limitations

a. Whether to impose punishment and the nature of the punishment are the sole decisions of the imposing
commander. However, commanders are encouraged to consult their NCOs on the appropriate type, duration, and limits
of punishment to be imposed. Additionally, as NCOs are often in the best position to observe a Soldier undergoing
punishment and evaluate daily performance and attitude, their views on clemency should be given careful
consideration.

b. Pursuant to the authority of the Secretary of the Army, as set forth in paragraph 5a, part V, MCM, 2012, the
following additional rules and limitations concerning the kinds and amounts of punishment authorized under the
UCMJ, Art. 15 apply (see aso table 3-1, below):

(1) Correctional custody. Correctiona custody may be imposed by any commander unless the authority to impose
has been withheld or limited by a superior authority. Before imposing correctional custody the commander will ensure
that adequate facilities, as described in AR 19047, exist to carry out the punishment. The responsibilities, policies, and
procedures concerning the operation of correctional custody facilities are contained in AR 190-47. Soldiers in the rank
of specialist (SPC) or corporal (CPL) or above may not be placed in correctiona custody. However, if an unsuspended
reduction to the rank of private first class (PFC) or below is imposed under the UCMJ, Art. 15, correctional custody
may aso be imposed. Time spent in correctional custody does not constitute lost time (10 USC 972).

(2) Confinement on bread and water or diminished rations. This punishment may be imposed only on a Soldier in
the rank of PFC or below who is attached to or embarked on a vessal.

(3) Restriction. Restriction may be imposed with or without suspension from duties. Normally, the limits of the
restriction should be announced at the time punishment is imposed. However, the imposing commander, a successor-in-
command, and any superior authority may change the specified limits of restriction; for example, if a Soldier is
transferred or assigned duties at another location after imposition and before the term of restriction is completed. The
limits of restriction, as changed, will be generally no more restrictive (unless required by military exigencies) than the
limits originally imposed.

(4) Arrestin quarters. A commissioned officer undergoing this punishment may be required to perform any military
duty not involving the exercise of command. During field exercises, an officer's quarters are those normally occupied
by officers of a similar grade and duty position. If a commissioned officer in arrest in quarters is placed on duty
involving the exercise of command by an authority having knowledge of the status of arrest in quarters, that status is
thereby terminated.

(5) Extra duties. Extra duties may be required to be performed at anytime and, within the duration of the
punishment, for any length of time. No extra duty may be imposed that—

(a) Constitutes cruel or unusual punishment or a punishment not sanctioned by the customs of the Service; for
example, using the offender as a personal servant.

(b) Is a duty normally intended as an honor, such as assignment to a guard of honor.

(c) Isrequired to be performed in a ridiculous or unnecessarily degrading manner; for example, an order to clean a
barracks floor with a toothbrush.

(d) Constitutes a safety or headth hazard to the offender, or

(e) Would demean the Soldier’s position as a NCO or specialist (SPC) (AR 600-20).

(6) Reduction in grade.

(a) Promotion authority. The grade from which reduced must be within the promotion authority of the imposing
commander or of any officer subordinate to the imposing commander. For the purposes of this regulation, the imposing
commander or any subordinate commander has “promotion authority” within the meaning of UCMJ, Art. 15(b) if the
imposing commander has the general authority to appoint to the grade from which reduced or to any higher grade (see
AR 600-8-19).

(b) Date of rank. When a person is reduced in grade as a result of an unsuspended reduction, the date of rank in the
grade to which reduced is the date the punishment of reduction was imposed. If the reduction is suspended either on or
after the punishment was imposed, or is set aside or mitigated to forfeiture, the offender’s date of rank in the grade
held before the punishment was imposed remains unchanged. If a suspension of the reduction is vacated, the offender’s
date of rank in the grade to which reduced as a result of the vacation action is the date the punishment was originally
imposed, regardless of the date the punishment was suspended or vacated.

(c) Entitlement to pay. When a Soldier is restored to a higher pay grade because of a suspension or when a reduction
is mitigated to a forfeiture, entittement to pay at the higher grade is effective on the date of the suspension or
mitigation. This is true even though an earlier date of rank is assigned. If, however, a reduction is set aside and all
rights, privileges, and property are restored, the Soldier concerned will be entitled to pay as though the reduction had
never been imposed.

(d) Void reduction. Any portion of a reduction under UCMJ, Art. 15 beyond the imposing commander’ s authority to
reduce is void and must be set aside. Where a commander reduces a Soldier below a grade to which the commander is
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authorized to reduce and if the circumstances of the case indicate that the commander was authorized and intended to
reduce the Soldier at least one grade, a one-grade reduction may be approved. Also, if a reduction is to a lower
specidist grade when reduction should have been to a lower NCO grade (or vice versd), administrative action will be
taken to place the offender in the proper rank for the MOS held in the reduced pay grade. All rights, privileges, and
property, including pay and allowances, of which a Soldier was deprived by a reduction that has been set aside must be
restored.

(e) Removal from standing promotion lists. See AR 600-8-19.

(7) Forfeiture of pay.

(a) Limitations. The amount of forfeiture of pay will be rounded to the next lower whole dollar. Forfeitures imposed
by a company grade commander may not be applied for more than 1 month, while those imposed by a field grade
commander may not be applied for more than 2 months. For example, a company grade commander may impose a
forfeiture of 7 days pay for 1 month but may not impose a forfeiture of 3 days' pay per month for 2 months (see table
3-1). If aforfeiture of pay has been imposed in addition to a suspended or unsuspended reduction in grade, the amount
forfeited will be limited to the amount authorized for the reduced grade. The maximum forfeiture of pay to which a
Soldier is subject during a given month, because of one or more actions under UCMJ, Art. 15, is one-half of the
Soldier’s pay per month. The UCMJ, Art. 15 forfeitures will not (in conjunction with partial forfeitures adjudged by
court-martial) deprive a Soldier of more than two-thirds of the Soldier’s pay per month (see DOD 7000.14-R).

(b) Retired Soldiers. Forfeitures imposed under UCMJ, Art. 15 may be applied against a Soldier’s retirement pay.

(8) Combination and apportionment. With the following exception, punishment authorized under UCMJ, Art. 15(b)
may be combined: No two or more punishments involving deprivation of liberty may be combined, in the same
nonjudicial punishment proceedings, to run either consecutively or concurrently, except that restriction and extra duty
may be combined in any manner to run for a period not exceeding the maximum duration that can be imposed for extra
duty, by the imposing commander. Once commenced, deprivation of liberty punishments will run continuously, except
where temporarily interrupted due to the fault of the Soldier, or the Soldier is physically incapacitated, or an apped is
not acted on as prescribed in paragraph 3-21b. (See para 3-21c, below regarding the circumstances when deprivation
of liberty punishments, imposed in separate nonjudicial punishment proceedings may run consecutively.)

(9) Format for punishments. The formats shown below should be used when entering punishments in item 6 of DA
Form 2627. When more than one punishment is imposed during any single UCMJ, Art. 15 proceeding, punishments
should be listed in the following order, as appropriate, reduction, forfeiture of pay, deprivation of liberty, admonition/
reprimand.

(a) Reduction. Reduction should be entered on DA Form 2627 as follows: Reduction to (rank) (pay grade), for
example, “Re